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The Department of Human Services, Benefit, Employment and Support Services Division, Employment/Child Care Program Office, is issuing this addendum to RFP Number HMS 305-08-02-S, RFP Title:  Outreach and Application/Payment Processing for DHS Child Care Subsidies, for the purposes of:

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Responding to questions that arose at the orientation meeting of October 18, 2007, and written questions subsequently submitted in accordance with Section 1-V, of the RFP.  

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Amending the RFP.

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Final Revised Proposals

The proposal submittal deadline:

 FORMCHECKBOX 

is amended to <new date>.

 FORMCHECKBOX 

is not amended.

 FORMCHECKBOX 

for Final Revised Proposals is <date>.

Attached is (are):

 FORMCHECKBOX 

A summary of the questions raised and responses for purposes of clarification of the RFP requirements.

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Amendments to the RFP.

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Details of the request for final revised proposals. 

If you have any questions, contact:

Contact person’s name:  Ethel Fleming
Contact phone:  (808) 586-078
Contact e-mail address:  efleming@dhs.hawaii.gov
Contact address:  Department of Human Services
                             Benefit, Employment & Support Services Division

                             Employment/Child Care Program Office

     820 Mililani Street, Suite 606

     Honolulu, Hawaii  96813

Responses to Questions Raised by Applicants For: 
RFP No.     HMS 305-08-02-S

RFP Title:  Outreach and Application/Payment Processing for DHS Child Care Subsidies
1. Question:  Is the current annual operating budget for this program available?  Please verify our assumption that, if $1.6 million is available for six months, then the annual budget will be $3.2 million and will be at least approximately that for the additional 3 years of the contract.  Is the start-up cost included as part of the $1.6 million?  Are the bonuses listed on RFP pp. 3-5 and 3-6 in addition to the $1.6 million or $3.2 million for each year?
Response:  The $1,600,000 allocated (RFP p. 2-5) is based on a 12-month projection.  For the initial six month period, the amount includes allowance for the estimated expenses to purchase equipment and pay for other start-up costs that are not likely to recur in succeeding fiscal years.  DHS does not foresee that the additional personnel and operating costs for the period January 1, 2008 – June 30, 2008 will be spent up to the total allocated amount.  The RFP p. 2-6 provides information that the contract amount is subject to increase or decrease.  Please also see the RFP amendment that discusses bonus and penalty amounts, after Question # 35 in this document.
2. Question:  Since current staff split their time between programs, is it possible to estimate either the number of hours per week (per person or cumulatively) or the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) positions that are dedicated to this program?  Can you provide the current staff salaries?
Response:  There are approximately 26 FTE DHS child care payment staff positions Statewide, that are paid $28,884, the beginning step.  In addition, approximately 12 FTE clerical positions support the activities of the child care payment workers.   Secretary positions also begin at $28,884.  A Clerk Typist position begins at $24,684.  
3. Question:  We understand that to prevent discrimination, employers in Hawaii – with some exceptions – are not allowed to ask about criminal convictions when a person first applies for a job.  Since it is our company policy to perform background checks, and this program requires handling sensitive data and money, would this be considered one of those exceptions, allowing us to conduct background checks?

Response:  This question on labor law should be directed to the attorney for the interested organization.  DHS-contracted employees with access to DHS client information are required to sign confidentiality agreements before DHS can grant them access to information in the DHS electronic data systems.
4. Question:  Based on prior start-up experience, a thorough review and analysis of carryover caseload paperwork is essential.  Will time be allotted during the start-up period for this?

Response:  Yes.  There will be an opportunity to shadow DHS staff who currently have these responsibilities.  The DHS will also provide training to the Contractor staff.  The DHS intends to instruct DHS staff to transfer “clean”, orderly cases to the Contractor in increments.
5. Question:  Since the new provider will be assuming the existing caseload, will there be any penalties or other liability for infractions that pre-date 1/1/08?

Response:  No.  
6. Question:  Who will be responsible for training the various parties involved in implementing and operating the EBT card system?

Response:  The DHS BESSD Staff Development Office will provide this training.
7. Question:  On the SPO website, upon clicking “Forms & Instructions for Private Providers/Applicant” [per RFP p. 1-2], the message “There are currently no items in this folder” comes up.  Is there another link that connects to forms and cost principles?
Response:  http://www4.hawaii.gov/spoh/SPOHsite_index.htm
8. Question:  Can the proposal be hand-delivered to the DHS location, or must it be sent by USPS?

Response:  A proposal in response to this RFP may be hand-delivered by the deadline date and time, HST, to the designated DHS office.  See the RFP cover letter, p. 2, signed by the Director of the Department, and the Proposal Mail-in and Delivery Information Sheet filed before the Table of Contents in the RFP.  On RFP p.1-6, note that dated USPS shipping labels are not considered postmarks.
9. Question:  For remote locations, can a laptop using VPN connectivity be used to connect to the “HANA” and/or “HAWI” technology solutions, or is a hardwired connection required?  Who provides the automated system, and supports it?  What is the connectivity for the program, i.e., WAN, LAN?  If equipment is not transferring to the new contractor, what system requirements are needed (not just WAN, LAN, but the type of equipment that will actually interface with the State system, T-1 lines, etc.)?  Will automation equipment be transferred to the new Contractor?
Response:  Connection to the LAN/WAN HANA system is web-based.  The Contractor has to be on the Department’s dedicated network, thus, the Contractor cannot access through its own browser.  DHS will provide new computer equipment.  DHS staff will assist in the set-up and support of the systems.
10. Question:  This proposal appears to be for services similar to those that Hawaii sought proposals for in January 2006 and July 2006.  At the time of those RFPs, the work was ultimately not awarded.  Can the State provide additional information on why the work was not awarded in the past and how the landscape has changes since the earlier RFPs that allows for the work to be awarded at this time?
Response:  Previous DHS solicitations that were not completed involved separate procurements of child care publicity/outreach services and child care payment services.  Considerations of issues such as entering the DHS application information, correspondence/notes about incomplete applications or missing verification entered into the HANA system and case record and transferring the case documents to “ongoing” units to calculate, authorize and issue payments concluded that this process was cumbersome and likely to lead to lost documents.  This led to thinking of contracted child care services as all encompassing, much as DHS staff now conduct the payment services.  The desired contracted outreach services component that publicize child care eligibility conditions are expected to produce a high percentage of child care application approvals, with all case-related documents in the hands of one party.
In addition, the improper child care payments issue in the 45 CFR Part 98 subpart K has led to a reorganization of the DHS workforce to create a separate DHS unit to conduct “error rate” case reviews to help fulfill the reporting requirements.

11. Question:  How many state/vendor staff (FTEs) currently perform the services being requested by function?  Where are these staff currently located?  How many office locations are currently performing the services outlined in the RFP?  Is it an option to keep current office locations, i.e., pick up the existing leases?
Response:  Only State staff (approximately 26 FTE) not assigned to any First-to-Work (Hawaii’s Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) work program) clients now authorize these child care payment services.  This does not include approximately 12 FTE clerical support staff.  The locations listed below house DHS employees that conduct multiple functions, and therefore DHS will not vacate the existing offices: 
OAHU
333 N. King St., Honolulu (2 units)
420 Waiakamilo Rd., Honolulu (6 units)
1485 Linapuni St., Honolulu

677 Queen St., Honolulu (3 units)
601 Kamokila Blvd., Kapolei (4 units)
86-120 Farrington Hwy. Waianae

86-088 Farrington Hwy., Waianae

94-275 Mokuola St. Waipahu

929 Center St., Wahiawa

45-260 Waikalua Rd., Kaneohe

45-513 Luluku Rd., Kaneohe (2 units)
46-005 Kawa St. Kaneohe

HAWAII
1990 Kinoole St., Hilo

75-5722  Hanama Pl., Kailua-Kona
MAUI, MOLOKAI, LANAI

270 Waiehu Beach Rd., Wailuku

KAUAI
4473 Pahee St., Lihue

3060 Eiwa St., Lihue

4-1579 Kuhio Hwy., Kapaa

4469 Waialo Rd., Eleele
12. Question:  Are there workload standards and benchmarks available for the administration of the current program?  If so, what are these?

Response:  The Financial Assistance cases are approximately 250:1 staff.  This is the staff that currently also handles the Food Stamps and child care payment cases.
13. Question:  On page 2-4 the RFP requires that the vendor “Outreach to 400 families” per month.  How will these families be identified/targeted?

a. Will the vendor be responsible for identifying the families?

Response:  Yes.  There could be publicity, and also coordination with the communities.  The Contractor is to collect data to verify outreach efforts.
b. Or will the families be responsible for contacting the state/vendor?

Response:   If there is information available in the community from the Contractor, individuals could also initiate the contact with the Contractor.  Refer to RFP p. 2-9.
c. What type of outreach activities are envisioned?

Response:  Media, community agencies and gathering places, etc. to inform individuals that help with child care costs is available through DHS for eligible families, information about the eligibility criteria, assistance with completing the child care application form, etc.
14. Question:  Attachment D states “Continually advertise and outreach to the communities” is a required activity.  What type of outreach is envisioned?  What outreach is currently conducted?  What is the level of state staff effort (FTE) and the amount currently spent on outreach?  

Response:   Please see response to Question # 14 in this document.  Currently, DHS does not conduct a concerted effort to inform families about these services.  When requested, speakers attend gatherings, and provide a brochure that summarizes child care eligibility requirements. 
15. Question:  How many of the individual providers, on average serving eligible families, are anticipated to be License-Exempt or Relative providers and require the vendor to confirm provider eligibility?
Response:  Approximately 60% of the 5,100 September 2007 eligible families use License-Exempt or Relative providers.  The Contractor will refer these individuals during the client’s child care application phase to a separate DHS Contractor for the initial fingerprint and criminal history as well as child abuse/neglect background checks.  Then, DHS staff conducts assessments of “hits” found through that Contractor’s search of those individuals’ criminal and child abuse/neglect history to determine whether the individuals qualify to be receive the child care subsidy authorized for an eligible family.  The Contractor then will receive confirmation that child care payments can be made to the providers approved through this process.
16. Question:  On page 2-10 the RFP discusses issuing and collecting completed DHS provider information and consent forms.  How many providers are anticipated to submit these forms each month?

Response:  Approximately 300 newly-eligible cases Statewide may submit the provider information form completed by the selected provider monthly, as this form is submitted by both DHS-Licensed and License-Exempt providers to verify the child care arrangement selected by the eligible family.  License-exempt providers then are referred to have a background check conducted to determine their suitability to provide child care.  The consent form is submitted by new License-Exempt providers with the provider information form. The provider consent form also is an annual requirement.  It is estimated that 400 providers, both License-Exempt and DHS-Licensed, will be required monthly to undergo the criminal history and child abuse/neglect background checks related to issuance of child care subsidies.
17. Question: Will DHS continue to hold the contractor liable for penalties for not meeting the required quality percentages if the caseload grows beyond the 7,700 caseload level?  Will there be a grace period for penalties for a new Contractor?
Response:  Yes, the Contractor will be liable for penalties; there is no grace period. 
18. Question:  Have there been any audits, reports, or studies on government-subsidized child care in Hawaii in the past five years?  If so, please indicate where to find these documents.

Response:  The latest report of an independent certified public accountant, Grant Thornton, for year ended June 30, 2006 that pertains to child care case files contained the following:  
“Criteria:  Title 45 CFR Part 98.65(e) requires appropriate documentation be maintained to allow verification that funds are expended in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements.

Condition:  During the review of 30 child care case files, the following was noted:

▪   2 case files were missing required documentation supporting $2,183 in child care benefit payments.  These include child care receipt and verification of service forms.

▪  19 case files in which the application forms and/or other forms were missing or not properly completed.

Questioned costs:  $2,183 based on the errors indicated in the condition above.
Context:  In 2006, total federal expenditures for this p4ogram are approximately  $34,704,200.

Cause:  The eligibility worker did not maintain or complete all required documentation supporting eligibility determinations and/or child care benefit payments to child care providers.

Effect:  Failure to maintain supporting documentation to support eligibility determinations resulted in compliance with federal grant guidelines.
Recommendation:  DHS should ensure that all required documents are properly completed and maintained in each case file to support the allowability and eligibility of the child care payments being claimed for federal; reimbursements.  A secondary review would help to ensure all required documents are properly completed.

Corrective action taken or planned:  The Staff Development Staff (SDS) is continuing to train the eligibility Workers on child care policies and procedures with emphasis on proper eligibility determination and maintenance of documentation in the case records.  Since April1, 2006and on-going, the SDS has provided CC training with emphasis on maintenance of all required documentation in child care case files in April 2006 for eligibility workers, April and July 2006for clerical staff, and May 2006 for First-to-Work (FTW) staff responsible for child care payments.
The Employment and Child Care Program (ECCP) staff has addressed the Supervisors, Section Administrators and Branch Administrators during the routine meetings about the importance of and need for maintaining all required documentation in child care case files.  During these discussions, ECCP staff has stressed the importance of maintenance of all required documentation in child care case files.
BESSD will be meeting in the near future with the Management Support Office (MSO), Quality Control (QWC) staff to discuss a plan to conduct routine quarterly sample review of case files to determine if the problem cited above still exists.

The foregoing efforts should decrease clerical errors/oversight while authorizing child care payments in the future.”
19. Question:  Will the DHS provide the child care application form?  If so, could we please be provided with a copy of the form?

Response:  Yes.  
20. Question:  Will DHS provide training to the selected vendor?  For what duration?

Response:  The DHS will provide 2-4 days (clerical staff will need two days) of training to the Contractor’s new employees on the Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) of benefits, child care services rules, and the required DHS electronic data systems.  Verification of this training by the trainer will grant access to the DHS electronic systems required to perform the services.  
21. Question:  Will it be the responsibility of the selected vendor to develop their own case management tracking system, and that the State will not be providing access to one?  What is the current data collection system being used?  Is it owned by the State or an outside vendor?
Response:  There are monthly DHS-generated reports from the HANA system such as applications received, status of the applications, caseload by unit and worker, etc. that are made available to the Contractor.  ACCESS system is not provided to staff.
22. Question:  On page 2-5 the RFP states that the vendor must serve all cases until the caseload is capped.  What is the caseload cap?  Will the State authorize the vendor to increase its budget/staffing to meet caseload needs?  If yes, how will this be done?
Response:  The caseload is capped when monies for subsidies are projected to be insufficient for the balance of the fiscal year.  For the second question, please refer to RFP p. 2-5, F.  The method to amend the conditions will be via a Supplemental Agreement to the contract, to include a narrative and revised budget, as long as the procurement standards are not violated, and it is signed by both parties to the contract.
23. Question:  Is there a current vendor providing the services?

Response:  No.  DHS personnel now perform the services in geographical units Statewide.
24. Question:  Does Hawaii anticipate a transition period during the contract start-up?

Response:  Yes.  Active cases will be gradually transitioned to the Contractor after DHS training is completed.
25. Question:  Will the vendor provide any referral services to assist eligible families in securing placement with a provider?  Will the vendor provide any referral or child care information services to the general public, or only those families seeking an eligibility determination and eligible families?

Response:  The Contractor is not obligated to perform child care referrals.  The Contractor may refer people to the local Child Care Resource and Referral agency called “People Attentive to Children” (PATCH.)  This agency is used by the community as a source of information about child care providers, if the eligible family is unable to select an eligible provider through its own network of resources.  
As part of the outreach services in this RFP, the organization contracted to provide these services would be able to direct inquiries from the general public to PATCH.  Information about the DHS child care services is available to all families.  The Contractor will use DHS policies and rules to determine whether applicant families are eligible for DHS child care subsidies.
26. Question:  The RFP details the monthly numbers for applications for the various geographic areas but not a total for the monthly payments.  Will you provide a breakdown of the monthly payments by geographic areas – Hilo, Kona, Oahu (Honolulu, Windward & Leeward - including Central -  separately), Kauai, and Maui (including Molokai and Lanai separately)?
Response:  Cases receiving child care payments as of  8/31/07:  Hilo – 1,036; Kona – 277; Honolulu – 1,184, Central Oahu – 797; Leeward Oahu – 484; Windward Oahu – 288; Kauai – 287; Maui/Mol/lLanai – 668.
27. Question:  How will applications and correspondence be received?  Will the contractor be required to have a P.O. Box, or will they be delivered first to BESSD?

Response:  Applications and correspondence will be delivered directly to the Contractor’s address by the individuals, or via United States Postal Service.  They will not be directed to BESSD.
28. Question:  How will postage for outgoing applications be handled?  Should the contractor include these costs in our proposal?

Response:  The Contractor assumes postage costs as part of the contract operating costs shown on “Program Activities”, Form SPO-H-206H.
29. Question:  Should the contractor include the cost of the required toll-free telephone number?

Response:  Yes.
30. Question:  Would it be possible to get a copy of the HANA user’s manual?

Response:  The HANA User’s Manual is available to DHS staff on the BESSD Portal.  Only authorized DHS employees and contractors are able to access it.
31. Question:  Would DHS clarify what the Department would like to see in our response for Section VII.D Performance and Output Measurement Tables?
Response:  Attachment B is only a sample format.  The organization may develop its own Table of Contents (TOC), which organizes the contents of a proposal.  The proposal may or may not contain a table(s) to succinctly reflect a summary of any written description, much like business reports or college texts provide tables or charts to illustrate points at a glance.  An organization may include creative examples.  The TOC serves as a tool to quickly reference at least the required contents requested in the RFP.  The RFP itself for instance, contains a TOC, and tables, as on RFP page 1-2.  The TOC will also help the raters of the proposals to locate responses to items requested in the RFP.  Please remember to number all pages of the proposal submitted to the DHS.
The output and performance measures are listed on p. 2-14, and the frequency of the reports submitted to DHS is listed on p. 2-15.

32. Question:  Is Subpart K new to the 45 CFR Part 98?

Response:  Yes, this addresses “Error Rate Report”, “Case Review Methodology”, and “Content of Error Rate Reports”.  All reference improper child care payments.  http://www.acf.hhs.gov/programs/ccb/ccdf/ipi/nprm_comment.htm
33. Question:  Is there provision for electronic imaging?

Response:  Document imaging is not prohibited.  However, HANA is a custom application, and the Contractor could not connect to the HANA electronic system without modification being done to the existing HANA application.  
34. Question:  Will DHS need to approve the outreach activities of the Contractor?

Response:  Yes.

35. Question:  Is there a list available of clients receiving assistance?
Response:  It is possible for DHS to extract such a list from its records.  However, due to DHS regulations regarding client confidentiality, the DHS cannot disclose client information for the purposes of this RFP.  
RFP No.    HMS 305-08-02-S

RFP Title: Outreach and Application/Payment Processing for DHS Child Care Subsidies

 is amended as follows:

	

	
	Subsection
	Page
	

	

	Section 1, Administrative Overview

	
	no changes
	
	

	Section 2, Service Specifications

	
	no changes
	
	

	Section 3, Proposal Application Instructions

	
	V (A)
	3-5
	Based on the $1.6 million in total federal funding, the bonuses and the amount that can be used breakdown to the following: 
Total bonuses:  $160,000

Maximum for each bonus:  $40,000

Balance (minus bonuses): $1,440,000

	Section 4, Proposal Evaluation

	
	no changes
	
	

	Section 5, Attachments

	
	No changes
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